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May 25, 2021 

ADDENDUM 1 

TO:  All Prospective Offerors 

FROM:  Scott Bachtell, Supervisor of Purchasing 

REF:  Bid 2021-49 Bus Fuel Depot Improvements 

BID DUE DATE/TIME:    June 1, 2021 at 11:00 am EST 
  Washington County Public Schools Center for Education Services 

10435 Downsville Pike 
Hagerstown, MD 21740 

 
The following changes are made a part of the Drawings and Specifications for the project named above. Receipt of 

this Addendum is to be acknowledged in the space provided on the Bid Form.  Failure to do so may subject the Bid to 

be considered as non-responsive. 

GENERAL/BIDDER QUESTIONS 

1.1 Q: In spec document (01 11 01 – 5, 1.8, G) it states: “Contractor field office trailer(s) will not be permitted on 
school property for this project.” Is contractor permitted to place a trailer for storage of materials and 
equipment within the designated staging/work area? 
A: Bidders will be allowed to place a material/storage trailer on site at a mutually agreed upon location. 
 

1.2 Q: On AIA 701 4.3.1, it indicates the proposal is to be submitted in duplicate. At the pre-bid, it was said that is to 
be one copy.  Please clarify. 
A: One (1) sealed copy of the bid submission is required. 
 

1.3 Q: On AIA 701 11.2.1, it states that the owner is not providing Builder’s Risk. 11.4.1 states that the owner is to 
maintain all risk.  Please verify that the builder is not responsible for Builder’s Risk. 
A: Assuming the question refers to the AIA A201 and not the A701, the Contractor is only responsible to meet 
the insurance requirements outlined in Article 11, Section 11.1 of the AIA A201 – General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction as Modified by the Board of Education of Washington County. 

 
1.4 Q: What items are required to be submitted with the bid in the bid specifications? 
 A: Bids shall contain a fully completed Form of Proposal, a fully completed Bid/Proposal Affidavit, and a Bid 

Bond as referenced in the contract documents. 
 
1.5 Q: In section 01 11 01-1.10 it mentions that the contractor will have access to Clear Spring Middle School.  Does 

this pertain to another project or this project?  If it pertains to this project how? 
A: Bidders may disregard any references to Clear Spring Middle School. Bidders will have 24/7 access to 
exterior work for this project. Interior work is subject to the schedule restrictions outlined in 01 11 01, 1.10A. 
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1.6 Q: Based on the new location of the Used Oil AST and the tank pad should there be a turn down in the new AST 
slab and should additional support or retaining wall be installed? If so please provide details in drawings.  
Current location where the AST will be located appears to be falling in with little support. 
A: The turn down edge details for the used oil AST are provided in section A and keynote 5 on drawing S-103.  
Additional support or retaining wall is not necessary per the design. 
 

1.7 Q: Can you provide any grade elevation verification on the fuel and DEF piping trench depth across the existing 
storm drain? Will the storm drain affect the piping trench depth and if it will affect the storm drain, can the 
piping be routed in a fashion that it will not be affected? 
A: According to the City of Hagerstown Standards and Specifications, a minimum vertical separation of 1 foot 
must be maintained between the fuel and DEF piping and underlying 27” diameter storm drain piping. Based 
on available storm drain elevation at existing inlet structures, Engineer estimates the top of the storm drain 
elevation to be approximate el. 493.55 at the crossing location.  This is the basis of design which provides a 
minimum 1-foot separation between the top of the storm drain pipe and the bottom of the fuel and DEF 
trench at the crossing location. Contractor shall be responsible for verifying existing site conditions and 
notifying Engineer of any variances identified.  
 

1.8 Q: What’s the final depth of the lowest point transition containment sumps under the canopy fuel island for the 
fuel and DEF piping if the piping trench is installed per specification with the storm drain not being affected?  
Please provide detail if possible. 
A: Based on available storm drain elevation at existing inlet structures and the requirement for the diesel 
piping to slope a minimum of 1/8 inch per foot towards the intermediate (low point) sump in the fuel island 
area, Engineer estimates the intermediate sump piping penetrations to be approximately 32 inches below 
grade.  Contractor shall be responsible for verifying existing site conditions and notifying Engineer of any 
variances identified. 
 

1.9 Q: Sheet M-502 (7) DEF Transition Sump Detail- Detail shows the above grade piping at the DEF tank to be 1.5” 
flexible plastic product piping.  Should this be 1.5” Stainless Steel piping as opposed to flex plastic piping?  If flex 
plastic pipe is to be used/installed above grade please provide a detailed spec and piping detail. 
A: As shown in detail 7 on Drawing M-502 and stated in Specification Section 231300, above and below grade 
DEF piping shall be flexible DEF piping with heat trace and shall be Omega Flex DEF-Trac or approved equal. 
 

1.10 Q: (1) S-104 Column Foundation Detail- What is the depth/length of the canopy footer? 
A: Depth of drilled shafts shall be minimum 9 ft below grade and 3 ft above 10-inch concrete floor/grade. The 
typical total depth of drilled shafts shall be 12 ft as shown in section A on drawing S-102.  The diameter of 
shafts shall be 3 ft as noted on detail 1 on drawing S-104. Loads from pre-engineered canopy designer are 
required to finalize the drilled cast in place shaft design. As noted on S-101, Contractor shall submit signed 
and sealed drawings and calculations for Engineer and WCPS review.  
 

1.11 Q: AST lead times have been growing longer throughout the year and currently are running approximately 24 
weeks from the date of approved shop drawings. Assuming only 3 weeks for submittal preparation, review and 
approval for just the tanks with no questions to resolve, that puts you at 27 weeks to receive the ASTs on site, 
which would be the middle of December. Based on this, WCPS’s project duration needs to be adjusted.  Is it 
possible to extend the duration for completion at end of January 2022? 
A: WCPS acknowledges that current production rates for typical long-lead items appear to be taking 
additional time.  Given the fluidity of lead times across tank manufacturers in the local market, actual lead 
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times will not be known until preparation of the AST submittals begins.  WCPS is open to extending the 
completion date if production issues for ASTs across the market, as demonstrated by lead time identification 
of various vendors meeting the AST specification, are noted at the time of the submittal approval and is 
wholly outside the control of the Contractor.   
 

1.12 Q: Are liquidated damages to be assessed if not completed by the date of substantial completion or the date of 
final completion? 
A: Yes, at the rate of $500 per calendar day beyond the contractual date of substantial completion.  Refer to 
the AIA A101 for further details. 
 

1.13 Q: Is WCPS tax exempt? 
A: The transaction between the Owner and the Bidder is tax exempt. However, bidders must pay all 
applicable taxes encountered when procuring goods and services to complete the scope of work described in 
the RFP. 
 

1.14 Q: What is the existing Fuel Management Unit?  Please provide manufacturer, model and any options installed. 
A: The existing Fuel Management Unit is a Gasboy Islander Plus P/N PA039401800.  
 

1.15 Q: It is assumed that the canopy footers, and all concrete pads (AST pads, fueling islands, drive pads, etc.) have 
been designed based on the provided geotechnical report and the Contractor is not responsible for redesign.  Is 
this correct? 
A: Yes, design has been developed in accordance with geotechnical report. As noted on S-101, Contractor shall 
submit signed and sealed drawings and calculations for canopy for Engineer and WCPS review.  Loads from 
Contractor’s pre-engineered canopy designer are required to finalize the drilled cast in place shaft design. 
 

1.16 Q: What is to be done with the camera and light fixture beneath the camera (mounted on the corner canopy 
column)? Is this the light fixture that is to be moved to the new extended canopy corner?  Don’t see anything 
called out on the camera. Please provide details. 
A: Existing camera and light fixture will require removal prior to installation of canopy extension. The light 
fixture in question is to be removed and discarded by the contractor.  The camera in question is to be 
removed by the contractor and returned to the Owner.  Secure and cover all wiring within junction boxes. 
 

1.17 Q: On the change order form, the bond cost is shown at 1%.  Will WCPS not pay the actual bond cost if it is more 
than 1%? 
A: WCPS will reimburse the Prime Contractor for their true bond cost if adequate and official proof of the true 
bond cost is provided as part of the change order documentation.  Subcontractors are not subject to bond 
payment on change orders. 
 

1.18 Q: What is the estimated cost range for this project? 
A: WCPS is not releasing the project budget. 
 

1.19 Q: Detail 1 on sheet S-103 shows a concrete pad doweled into a concrete floor beneath.  Can you explain where 
this detail is relevant? 
A: Refer to Diesel Fuel Tank Pad – Plan and Used Oil Tank Pad – Plan on drawing S-103. Each AST shall be 
installed on a 4-inch concrete equipment pad which will be installed on top of the 12-inch concrete tank pad. 
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Detail 1 on drawing S-103 provides the top of 4-inch concrete equipment pad elevation with respect to 
concrete AST pad below.  
 

1.20 Q: The plans indicate to replace asphalt to match existing and then make reference to the flexible pavement 
item on detail 12 (Repairing Pavement Openings for Utility Trenches).  This detail indicates 2” of topping and 10” 
of base.  Is this correct?  Also, if existing is less, do we match existing or follow the detail? 
A: Geotechnical Engineering Report, included as an attachment to the specifications, identified 6 inches of 
asphalt underlain by 6 inches of gravel in borings collected in the area of the existing fuel island. Repaving 
should match this existing asphalt section. 
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